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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
 
BEFORE THE FEDERAL TRAE COMMISSION
 

) 
In the Matter of ) Docket No. 9324 

) 
WHOLE FOODS MARKT, INC., ) PUBLIC 

a corporation. ) 
) 

WHOLE FOODS MARKT. INC.'S RESPONSE
 
IN OPPOSITION TO NEW SEASONS MARKT'S MOTION TO
 

QUASH OR LIMIT SUBPOENA FROM WHOLE FOODS MARKT. INC.
 

INTRODUCTION
 

The motion to quash by New Seasons Market, Inc. ("New Seasons") is based upon
 

conclusory claims of undue burden that are addressed entirely to straw men that it has concocted,
 

and on irrelevant attempts to smear Whole Foods Market, Inc. ("Whole Foods"). As discussed 

more fully below, New Seasons has failed to carr its substantial burden on this motion, and 

therefore the motion should be denied. 

New Seasons ignores the fact that compliance with the subpoena to which it objects is 

necessitated by the complaint filed by the Federal Trade Commssion ("FTC") which alleges that 

Wild Oats lessens competition in a product market limited to 

"premium natural and organic supermarkets" and in geographic markets as small as approximately 

five or six miles in radius from these stores or as large as a metropolitan area. In order to 

Whole Foods' acquisition of 


(j 

properly defend itself on the critical question of the definition of the relevant markets, Whole 

its non-party competitors, including New Seasons, 

with whom Whole Foods competes in the Portland, Oregon area. See October 13, 2008 

Foods served subpoenas duces tecum on 93 of 




Subpoena Duces Tecum (attached as Exhbit 1 to New Seasons Market's Motion To Quash 

("New Seasons' Br.")). Whole Foods has no other effective means to obtain information from its 

non-party competitors necessar for its defense. Of 
 the 93 identical subpoenas Whole Foods has 

served, over 50 recipients have thus far fully or partially complied. Except for New Seasons, no 

recipient of a subpoena has moved to quash. 

New Seasons, for its part, does not contest the subpoena on relevance grounds. Rather, it 



New Seasons to identify the appropriate senior-level employees based on their area of 

responsibility whose files would be searched in an effort to reduce the burden. Id. ir 11. To 

comply with the subpoena, then, New Seasons would presumably only have to search a handful of 

employees' files at its headquarters. New Seasons does not even attempt to show why a search 

this narow could be unduly burdensome, but rather directs its arguments solely to the fallacy that 

Whole Foods is asking it to turn its company upside down. 

The confdentiality concerns raised by New Seasons are equally contrived. New Seasons 

it makes a production here, Whole Foods may use its documents to gain 

,a competitive advantage. This is a classic red herrng. The protective order issued by the 

Commssion in this matter is an "outside counsel eyes only" protective order, meaning that only 

outside counsel for Whole Foods and its experts may see New Seasons' documents designated as 

confdential under the order. No Whole Foods employee, even its in-house counsel, can have any 

access to New Seasons' confdential information. This is effectively the strictest type of 

claims that it fears that if 


protective order used in civil 









I. New Seasons Has Failed To Demonstrate, and Cannot Demonstrate, that the
 

Subpoena Is Unduly Burdensome 

As the subpoenaed pary, New Seasons bears "(t)he burden of 
 showing that the request(s) 

(are) umeasonable." In re Rambus. Inc., No. 9302,2002 FTC LEXIS 90, at *9 (Nov. 18.2002) 

(denying third pary's motion to quash subpoena in FTC adjudicative proceeding). Moreover, 

that burden is "heavy." In re Flowers Industries, Inc., No. 9148, 1982 FTC LEXIS 96, at *15 

(Mar. 19, 1982) (denying motions to quash third-party subpoenas in FTC anti-merger action); 

accord FTC v. Texaco. Inc., 555 F.2d 862, 882 (D.c. Cir. 1977) (cited on page 4 of New 

Seasons' brief) ("(T)hat burden is not easily met where, as here, the agency inquiry is pursuant to 

a lawfl purpose and the requested documents are relevant to that purpose;" ordering compliance 

with subpoenas issued in FTC proceeding and reversing district court for modifying the requests 

to make them narower)? New Seasons cannot satisfy this heavy burden. 

2 It is further well-settled that "(t)hat burden is no less because the subpoena is directed at a non

party." Flowers Industries, 1982 FTC LEXIS 96, at *15; accord Rambus, 2002 FTC LEXIS 90, 
at *9 ("The burden is no less for a non-party."). New Seasons cites three federal district court 
cases for the idea that courts sometimes consider "the fact of nonparty status" when ruling on a 
motion to quash a subpoena. See,~, New Seasons' Br., at 8. New Seasons' reliance on those 
cases is misplaced as those courts were interpreting the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, while 
this FTC adjudicative proceeding is governed by the Commssion's Rules of Practice. See
 

Echostar Comm. Corp. v. News Corp., 180 F.RD. 391,394 (D. Colo. 1998) (cited on pages 2-3 
New Seasons' brief), Katz v. Batavia Marine & Sporting Supplies. Inc., 984 F.2d 422,424of 

New Seasons' brief), and Mycogen Plant Science. Inc. v.
(Fed. Cir. 1993) (cited on page 4 of 


Monsanto Co., 164 F.RD. 623, 628 (B.D. Pa. 1996) (cited on page 8 of 
 New Seasons' brief). In 
any event, considering "the fact of nonparty status" is far from a settled practice in the federal 
courts, and many courts ignore one's non-pary status when ruling on motions to quash. See, 

30~, Castle v. Jallah, 142 F.RD. 618 (B.D. Va. 1992); Composition Roofers Un. Local 

Welfare Trust Fund v. Graveley Roofing Enters.. Inc., 160 F.RD. 70 (B.D. Pa. 1995). Indeed, 
the leading treatise on federal procedure "finds no basis for ( a) distinction (between party and 
non-party status) in the (relevant) rule's language." Charles Alan Wright and Arhur R Miller, 
9A Federal Practice & Procedure § 2459 (2d ed. 2008). 
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A. Whole Foods' Subpoena Seeks Hi2hlv Relevant Information
 

Since as far back as the 1970s, "(t)he practice ofthe Commssion has been to uphold 

subpoenas duces tecum upon a showing . . . that the requested information is generally relevant to 

the issues raised by the pleadings." In re Kaiser Alum. & Chem. Corp., No. 9080, 1976 FTC 

LEXIS 68, at *4 (Nov. 12, 1976) (denying motion to quash third-party subpoenas as unduly 

burdensome in FTC anti-merger proceeding when the requests bore a "general relevancy to the 

defenses raised by (the respondent).").3 New Seasons does not dispute that the documents sought 

in the thid, fourth, seventh, and eighth requests are relevant. Nor could it, as the requested 

documents go to the very hear of the Commssion's case. 

As Judge Friedman explained last year when considering whether preliminarily to enjoin 

the acquisition, the central issue in this case is the definition of 
 the relevant product market: 

(I)f the relevant product market is, as the FTC alleges, a product market of 
"premium natural and organic supermarkets" consisting only of the two defendants 
and two other non-national firms, there can be little doubt that the acquisition of 
the second largest firm in the market by the largest firm in the market will tend to 
harm competition in that market. If, on the other hand, the defendants are merely 
differentiated firms operating within the larger relevant product market of 
"supermarkets," the proposed merger wil not tend to harm competition. 

Whole Foods, 502 F. Supp. 2d at 8; see also Earkets",ml5informatio 197y4a mer .eubt t3tleas iibger arket of 
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employees" - including "merchandisers, buyers, store managers, and department managers." New 

Seasons' Br., at 3-4. The $250-500,000 figure, itself entirely unsupported, is based on a premise 

that New Seasons would have to search 300 employee files. As discussed above, this is simply 

not the case. Whole Foods has agreed to limit its third, fourth, seventh, and eighth requests only 

to senior management employees at New Seasons' headquarers, and that New Seasons need not 

its stores or store-level employees. Whle New Seasons refuses to tell counsel for 

Whole Foods who its senior employees at headquarters are, it is reasonable to assume that only a 

handful of individuals would possess responsive documents at headquarers. 

In any event, it is well-settled that a subpoena "seeking relevant data will not be quashed 

on the grounds that the burden is imposed on a third party, especially where the party initiating 

the subpoena has expressed a willingness to mitigate whatever burden may exist by negotiation 

search any of 


and compromise." In re General Motors Corp., No. 9077, 1977 FTC LEXIS 18, at *1 (Nov. 25, 

1977) (emphasis added) (denying motion to quash third-pary subpoena that would allegedly 

"require a substantial expenditure of 
 time and money").5 Here, Whole Foods has made a number 



9-12. 

Afer stringing Whole Foods along for weeks, New Seasons finally claims that the 

subpoena creates an undue burden because New Seasons is "head(ing) into the critical holiday 

season." New Seasons' Br., at 4. Any timing issue is of 
 New Seasons' own creation, given its 

delay tactics here. In any event, New Seasons does not submit any evidence to support the notion 

that its holiday store operations would be affected by having to search for narrow categories of 



ll. The Protective Order Addresses New Seasons' Concerns Regarding
 

Confidential and Commercially Sensitive Information 

New Seasons also advances the curious argument that the existing protective order issued 

by the Commssion - which prohibits any Whole Food employees, including inside counsel, from 

reviewing its documents - somehow cannot protect its confdential documents. This argument 

would carr no weight in the face of a standard protective order, and it is particularly unavailing 

in the face ofthe "outside counsel eyes only" order that governs this action. See Coca-Cola 

Botting, 1976 FTC LEXIS 33, at *3-5 (denying third pary's motion to quash subpoena in FTC 

proceeding when the third pary argued that the subpoena sought commercially sensitive 

documents). Thus, '''(t)he fact that information sought by a subpoena may be confdential does 

not excuse compliance.'" Rambus, 2002 FTC LEXIS 90, at * 11 (denying third party's motion to 

quash subpoena on ground that the subpoena called for commercially sensitive documents); 

accord Flowers Industries, 1982 FTC LEXIS 96, at *6-12. 

The stringent protective order entered in this case ameliorates any concerns of 
 New 

Seasons that confdential documents will be disclosed to Whole Foods' employees. "(P)rotective 

orders are routinely issued" to safeguard confdential information in Commssion proceedings. 

Coca-Cola Botting, 1976 FTC LEXIS 33, at *4.7 Here, the protective order protects 

comply, a fact which strains the credibility of 
 Dresser's claim ofumeasonable burden."); In re 
Coca-Cola Bottling Compo of 
 New York. Inc., No. 8992, 1976 FTC LEXIS 33, at *6 (Dec. 7, 
1976) (denying third party's motion to quash subpoena in FTC administrative proceeding on 
burden grounds and emphasizing that "respondent has managed to secure compliance by the vast 
majority of the 70-odd recipients of 
 the subpoena (including both large and small companies)."); 
Flowers, 1982 FTC LEXIS 96, at *12 (denying motions to quash third-pary subpoenas in anti-
merger action and underscoring that "(m)ost of the other subpoenaed bakers have chosen to 
comply with the subpoenas directed to them."). 

7 See also Rambus, 2002 FTC LEXIS 90, at * 11 ("The protective order entered in this case 
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confdential documents of 
 third parties such as New Seasons through a number of safeguards, 

Most importantly, the protective order allows disclosing confdential documents only to an 

extremely restricted group, such as your Honor, the Commssion, outside counsel for Whole 

Foods, and expert witnesses. See Oct. 10,2008 Protective Order ir 7 (attached as Exhbit 1 to . 

New Seasons' brief). Thus, New Seasons' confdential documents cannot be disclosed to any 

Whole Foods employee. Id. 

The protective order also alleviates any concerns of New Seasons about its confdential 

documents being disclosed to the public. Should Whole Foods or the Commssion intend to 

, 
introduce a confdential New Seasons document at trial, counsel must "provide advance notice to 

allowing (it) to seek an order that the document. . . be granted in(New Seasons) for purposes of 


camera treatment." October 10, 2008 Protective Order ir 10. The confdential document shall 

then receive that treatment "(u)ntil such time as the Administrative Law Judge rules otherwise." 

Id. See Basic Research, 2004 FTC LEXIS 272, at *6 (denying motion to quash narrowed 

subpoena in which subpoenaed pary cited confdentiality concerns in part because "Respondents 

may file a motion for in camera treatment to prevent disclosure to the public of its (sic) 

confdential materials at the trial in this matter."); accord Kaiser Alum., 1976 FTC LEX1S 68, at 

*14. This advance notice provides protection to New Seasons, as well as any other non-party. 

The implication of 
 New Seasons' claim that the protective order is not strong enough is 

ameliorates Mitsubishi's concerns (about producing confdential documents)."); In re Basic 
Research. LLC AG. Waterhouse, No. 9318,2004 FTC LEXIS 272, at *6 (Aug. 18,2004) ("The 
provisions of the Protective Order adequately protect the confdential documents of third paries 
through a number of safeguards;" compelling third parties to produce documents requested in 
subpoena as narrowed within ten days of order); accord Flowers Industries, 1982 FTC LEXIS 96, 
at *9; Dresser Industries, 1977 US. Dist. LEXIS 16178, at *15; Kaiser Alum., 
 1976 FTC LEXIS 
68, at *13. 

13 



clear - New Seasons does not trust Whole Foods to abide by the order. This line of reasoning has 

been rejected. See Coca-Cola Bottling, 1976 FTC LEXIS 33, at *5 ("(A)bsent a showing to the 

contrary, one has to assui;e that the protective order will work, especially in light of the extensive 

use of 
 the device in Commssion litigatìon (in cases frequently involving experts)."); see also FTC 

v. Invention Submission Corp., 965 F.2d 1086, 1091 & n.3 (D.c. Cir. 1992) (cited on page 4 of 

New Seasons' brief) ("(T)he har ISC alleges will only occur if 
 we presume that the Commssion 

will not abide by its representations - which, as we said, we are unprepared to do;" afrmng 

district court's enforcement of 
 subpoenas issued in Commssion investigation). Indeed, 

presuming noncompliance would undermne Commssion proceedings, in that subpoena recipients 

could refuse to cooperate by simply citing fears that the paries would violate the protective order. 

New Seasons finally suggests that the protective order is inadequate because it does not 





CONCLUSION
 

For the foregoing reasons, New Seasons' motion should be denied. 

Dated: December 4,2008 Respectfully submitted,
 

By l:~ ¿; L/~
Ja . s A Fishkn ~ ~ 
Kevin T. Kerns
 
Luke A E. Pazcky
 
DECHERT LLP 
1775 I Street, N.W.
 
Washington, D.C. 20006
 
Telephone: (202) 261-3300
 
Facsimile: (202) 261-3333
 

Attorneys for Whole Foods Market, Inc. 

16
 



UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
 
BEFORE THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION
 

)
In the Matter of ) Docket No. 9324 

)
WHOLE FOODS MARKT, INC., )
 

a corporation.
 ) 
) 

(PROPOSED) ORDER DENYING NEW SEASONS MARKT'S MOTION 
TO QUASH OR LIMIT SUBPOENA FROM WHOLE FOODS MARKT. INC. 

Upon due consideration New Seasons Market's Motion To Quash or Limit Subpoena 

from Whole Foods Market, Inc., it is hereby ORDERED that: 

1. New Seasons Market's motion is DENID; and
 

2. Within ten days of the entry of 
 this order, New Seasons Market shall COMPLY 

with the subpoena.
 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 

Date: 
D. Michael Chappell 
Administrative Law Judge 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of the foregoing Response In Opposition to 
New Seasons Market's Motion to Quash or Limit Subpoena and the Proposed Order was served 
this December 4,2008, on the following persons by the indicated method: 

By Hand Delivery and Email: 

Donald S. Clark, Secretary 
Federal Trade Commssion 
600 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20580 

By E-Mail and First Class Mail: 

Robert D. Newell, Esq. 
Davis Wright Tremaine LLP 
1300 S.W. Fifth Avenue 
Suite 2300 
Portland, OR 97201 

By E-Mail: 

J. Robert Robertson, Esq. 
Federal Trade Commssion 
600 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W. 
Washington, DC 20580 

Matthew J. Reily, Esq. 
Catharine M. Moscatell, Esq. 
Federal Trade Commssion 
601 New Jersey Avenue, N.W. 
Washington, DC 20001 

Complaint Counsel 
By: / r .. -
James Ahishkn 
DECHERT LLP 
1775 I Street, N.W. 
Washington, DC 20006-2401 
Telephone: (202) 261-3300 
Facsimile: (202) 261-3333 

Attorney for Whole Foods Market, Inc. 

18 



EXHIBIT A
 



UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
 
BEFORE THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION
 

)
In the Matter of Docket No. 9324) 

)
WHOLE FOODS MARKT, INC., ) PUBLIC 

a corporation. ) 
) 

Declaration of James A. Fishkin 

I, James A. Fishk, under penalty of perjury, hereby declare:
 

1. I am one of 
 the attorneys for Whole Foods Market, Inc. ("Whole Foods") in the 

above-captioned matter. 

2. In October, 2008, Whole Foods served subpoenas duces tecum on 93 of its non-


part competitors.
 

3. Of the 93 companies that were subpoenaed, over 50 have so far fully or partially
 

complied by producing documents or stating that they possess no responsive documents. 

4. On October 14, 2008, Whole Foods served a subpoena duces tecum on New
 

Seasons Market, Inc. ("New Seasons"). That subpoena is attached as Exhibit 1 to New 

Seasons' Motion To Quash or Limt Subpoena from Whole Foods Market, Inc. 

5. After service of that subpoena, on October 22, 2008, counsel for New Seasons,
 

Kevin Kono, Esq., asked me for a two-week extension to respond to the subpoena, which I 

granted. 

6. On November 6, 2008, Mr. Kono requested a second two-week extension, 



which I also granted. 

7. On November 4, November 6, and November 20, I spoke with counsel for New 

Seasons, Robert Newell, Esq., in an effort to resolve New Seasons' concerns about the 

subpoena inormally. In total, those thee conversations lasted approximately 1.5 hours. 

8. During those thee conversations, Mr. Newell never contested the relevance of
 

the requests in the subpoena; rather, he raised concerns over the alleged burden to comply, as 

well as concern about producing what he claimed are confdential documents under the terms
 

of the Protective Order. 

9. In response to those concern, I offered to limt the requests in the subpoena
 

substantially. 

10. First, I stated that Whole Foods would accept "high-level" documents from the
 

fies of "high-level" members of New Seasons' management team. 

11. Second, I invited Mr. Newell to identify the members of New Seasons' senior
 

management team who were likely to possess responsive high-level documents, something Mr. 

Newell declined. 

12. Third, I offered to limit Whole Foods' requests only to those high-level 

employees who work at New Seasons' Portland, Oregon headquarters, and I explained that 

Whole Foods sought no documents from the fies located at any of New Seasons' stores or 

from store-level employees. 

13. With respect to Ne~ Seasons' confidentiality concerns, I explained that the 

Protective Order entered by the Commssion would afford New Seasons the highest level of 

2
 



protection in that no Whole Foods employee could have access to New Seasons' confdential 

documents. 

14. After the conversation I had with Mr. Newell on November 20,2008, my
 

understanding was that both sides were close to resolving New Seasons' concerns. Mr. Newell 

made no mention of intending to fie the motion to quash that New Seasons fied on November 

24, 2008.
 

15. I had one additional conversation with Mr. Newell on November 25, 2008 to
 

discuss his motion to quash and the terms of the Protective Order. I also again extended my 

prior offer to reduce the burden of the subpoena.
 

Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1746, I declare under penalty of 
 perjury that the foregoing is 

true and correct and that ths declaration was executed on this 4th day of December, 2008. 

~ ¿; ~7
 
Jam s A. Fishk .,,
 
DECHERT LLP 
1775 I Street, N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20006 
Telephone: (202) 261-3300 
Facsimile: (202) 261-3333
 

Attorney for Whole Foods Market, Inc.
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EXHIBIT 1
 



UND STATE OF AMRIA 
FEDERA TRAE COMMSION 

WASHITON, D.C. 20580 

Ofce of the Secre 
June 26, 2007 

VI FACSIMILE AND EXPRESS MA 

New Seasons Market 
c/o Rober D. Newell, Esquie 
Davis Wright Tremaine LLP 
1300 S. W. Fift Ave. - Suite 2300
 

Portland, OR 97201 

Re: New Seasons Markets's t'NSM") Petition to Quash or Limit Civil Investigative 
Demand (flNSM's Petition"), File No. 071-0114 

Dear Mr. Newell: 

This lett advises you of the disosition ofNSM's Pettion to quash or lit
 

24, 2007. Becausethe Civil hivestigative Demand ("cn)") issued to it on Apri

specifications of 


NSM's Petition was fied after the deadline by which it had to be fied, the Commission denes 
NSM's Petition,l Puant to 16 C.F.R. § 2.7(e), NSM is ordered to comply with the CID on or
 

before July 3, 2007 at 5:00p.m. E.D.T. 

This ruling was made by Comssioner Pamela Jones Harbour, actig as the 
Comission's delegate. See 16 C.F.R. § 2.7(d)(4). Petitioner has the right to request review of 

thethis matter by the full Commssion. Such a request must be fied with the Secretar of 


this letter.2
Commssion with three days aft seice of 


Reachig the merts ofNSM's Petition would not change ths result. NSM 
burden. See Federal Trade Commission v. Rockefeller,provided no factual basis for its claims of 


591 F.2d 182, 190 (2nd Cir. 1979) (petitioner must show that compliance would "unduly dit 
or seriously hindet' its daily opertions). Furer, NSM's clai that inormation regarding the
 

facts of its groce store operations in one overap market are beyond the scoe of this 
investigation of a retil groceiy store merge is simply frvolous. Federal Trade Commission v. 
Whole Foods Market, Inc., et aI, DoeketNo. 1:07-cv-01021 (D.D.C. June 6, 2007), Complaint at 

ii 35, available at: htt://w.ft.gov/os/caselist/071 0 114/070605complaint.pdf (alleging
 

geographic maket defied by a six mile cicle arund each store). Finally, NSM offers no 
authority to support its request that the Commission agree to pay "dages" in the event of an 
inadvernt public disclosure of confidential business informtion, and the mere possibilty of 
such disclosure provides no'ground for quashing the CID. 

2 This let decision is being delivered by facsimile and express maiL. The
 

facsimile copy is being provided as a courtsy. Computation of the tie for appeal, therefore,
 



The cm at issue was signed and issued to NSM on April 24, 2007, retble on April
 

30,2007, Petition at I, and was sered on NSM on April 25, 2007. NSM states that ''the FTC 
has granted multiple extsions, ultiately extendig the time to respond to June 15, 2007." Id
 

NSM did not seek, nor was it granted, however, an extension of tie within which to fie a 
petition to quash or limit a CrD. The time for filing a petition to quash, absent mi extension of 
tie grted pursuant to and in confority with 16 C.F.R. § 2.7(d)(3), is the earlier of the date 
for compliance with the cm or 20 days afer servce. In the cas of 
 this em, a petition to quas 
should have been filed no later than the earlier of Apr 30th (intial compliance date) or May 15th 

the retu date forits(twenty days aft servce). NSM clai to have received extnsions of 


cm until June 15th? Extendig only the retu dae, however, stil would make May 15th the
 

latest peissible date for filing a petition to quash. An extion of the tie to comply does not
 

automatically extend the tie within which a petition to quash must be fied. Compare 16 
C.F.R. § 2.7(c) with 16 C.F.R. § 2.7(d)(3). Ling the two exenons together might provide 
both the mean and the incentive to delay investigations unecessary. NSM has offered no 
reason for fiing its petition out of tie, nor did it seek leave to fie its petition out of time.
 

Accordgly, 

IT is ORDERED THAT NSM's Petition be, and it hereby is, DENIED. 

IT is FURTHER ORDERED THT NSM shall respond to the cm on or before July 
3, 2007 at 5:00 p.m. E.D.T. 

By Directon of the Commission. 

Donald S. Clark 
Secreta 

should be calculate from the date you received the orginal by express maiL. In accordace with 
the provisions of 16 C.F .R. § 2.7(f), the tiely :fling of a request for review of this mattr by the
 

full Comssion shall not stay the retu date established by ths decision. 

The cin expressly provides that al modifications "must be agreed to in wrting 
by the Commssion representative." cm at 3. Furer, pursuat to 16 C.F.R. § 2.7(c), al such 
amendments regarding the maner and ting of compliance for ths cm required approval by at 
leat an Assistat Directo of the Bureau of Competition. The last wrttn approval of an
 

extension of the tie within which to comply tht was signed by an Assistat Directr only
 

extended the retu date to May 29, 2007. The Commission has reason to believe tht two 
addtional extnsions of the deadle for compliance were approved by an Assistant Directr.
 

request for an extnsion, unti June 5th, was addessed by anHowever, while the next to the last 


emil message, the fial request for mi extsion, unti June 15th, was addessed only orally. The
 

cm by its own ters does not pert oral modificatons. Accordigly, the last arguably 
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EXHIBIT 3
 



Whole Foods - New Seasons subpoena Page 1 ofl 

Pazicky, Luke 

From: Fishkin, James 
Sent: Wednesday, November 26, 2008 12:30 PM
 

To: Kerns, Kevin; Pazicky, Luke
 

Subject: FW: Whole Foods - New Seasons subpoena 

From: Newell, Bob (mailt:bobnewell(§DWT.COM) 
Sent: Thursday, November 06, 2008 4:58 PM
To: Fishkin, James . 
Cc: Kono, Kevin; Coffey, Linda 
Subjec: Whole Foods - New Seasons subpona
 

Dear Jim,
 

Thi wi confmi our 
 telephone conversation th morn in whch you graciously agreed to 
another two week extnsion on the deadles for response to or filing a motion to quash your 
subpoena. As I indicated, we are work with our client to detemine what they have and will get 
back to you as soon as we're able to discuss the mattr in greater 
 detail. Thank you again foryour 
professional courtsies.
 

Robert D. Newell I Davis Wright Tremaine LLP 
1300 SW Fift Avenue. Suite 2300 I Portland, OR 97201 
Tel: (503) 778-52341 Fax: (503) 778-5299 

Email: bobnewellt1d~com i Website: ww.dwt.com 

Anchora I Bellevue I Los Angeles I New York I Portand I San Francico I Se1l I Shanghai I Washingt. D.C. 

11/26/2008
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
 
BEFORE THE FEDERAL TRAE COMMSSION
 

COMMISSIONERS: Wiliam E. Kovacic, Chairman 
Pamela Jones Harbour 
Jon Leibowitz 
J. Thomas Rosch 

) 
In the Matter of ) 

) Docket No. 9324 
WHOLE FOODS MARKT, INC., ) 

a corporation. ) PUBLIC 
) 

AMENDED COMPLAIN
 

I. INRODUCTION 

Wild Oats Markets, Inc. 

("Wild Oats"), is likely to have substantially lessened competition and continues to substatially 
lessen competition, thereby causing significant harm to consumers. This merger, involving the 

Whole Foods Market, Inc.'s ("Whole Foods") acquisition of 


premium natual and organc supermarkets, may increase prices and 
reduce quality and services in a number of geographic markets throughout the United States. 
two leading operators of 


Whole Foods' Chief Executive Offcer John Mackey bluntly advised his Board of Directors of 
the purose of this acquisition: "By buying (Wild Oats) we wil . . . avoid nasty price wars in 
Portland (both Oregon and Maine), Boulder, Nashvile, and several other cities which wil har 
(Whole Foods') gross margins and profitabilty. By buying (Wild Oats) . . . we eliminate forever 

Kroger, Super Value, or Safeway using their brand equity to launch a 
competing national natul/organic food chain to rival us. . . . (Wild Oats) may not be able to 
the possibilty of 


defeat us but they can stil hur us. . . . (Wild Oats) is the only existing company that has the 
brand and number of stores to be a meaningful springboard for another player to get into this 
space. Eliminating them means eliminating this theat forever, or almost forever." 

To prevent this consumer har, the Federal Trade Commission ("Commission"), 
pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Trade Commssion Act and by virte of the authority 
vested in it by said Act, having reason to believe that Respondent Whole Foods and Wild Oats 

Wildentered into an agreement pursuat to which Whole Foods acquired the voting securities of 


the Federal Trade Commission Act, as amended,Oats, that such agreement violates Section 5 of 


the Clayton Act, as amended, 1515 U.S.c. § 45, and that such acquisition violates Section 7 of 


the Federal Trade Commission Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. § 45,U.S.C. § 18, and Section 5 of 


and it appearng to the Commission tht a proceeding by it in respect thereof would be in the 
public interest, hereby issues its Amended Complaint, stating its charges as follows: 



II. THE PARTIES AND JURISDICTION 

Whole Foods Market, Inc. 

1, Respondent Whole Foods is a corporation organized, existing, and doing business under 
and by virte of the laws of the State of 
 Texas, with its offce and principal place of 
business located at 550 Bowie Street, Austin, Texas 78703. 

2. Established in 1980, Whole Foods operates approximately 260 premium natu and
 

organic superarkets in more than 37 states and the Distrct of 	 Columbia. 

premium natual and organc supermarkets in the 
United States. 

3. Whole Foods is the largest operator of 


4. According to Whole Foods' Chief Executive Offcer John Mackey, Whole Foods is "a 
company that is authentically committd to its mission ofnatuallorganic/healthy foods. 
Its core customers recognize this authenticity and it creates a customer loyalty that wil 
not be stolen away by conventional markets who sell the same products. Whole Foods 

people."has created a 'brand' that has real value for millons of 


5. Whole Foods is, and at all times relevant herein has been, engaged in commerce as 
"commerce" is defined in Section 1 of the Claytn Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. § 12, and
 

is a corporation whose business is in or affects commerce as "commerce" is defined in 
the Federal Trade Commission Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. § 44.Section 4 of 


in. THE ACQUISITION
 

6. On Februar 21,2007, Whole Foods and Wild Oats executed an agreement whereby
 

Wild Oats though WFMIWhole Foods proposed to acquire all of the voting securties of 


Whole Foods (the "Acquisition"). The 
purchase was effected though a tender offer for all shares of 	 Wild Oats common stock. 
The total cost of the Acquisition was approximately $671 milion in cash and assumed 
debt. 

Merger Co., a wholly-owned subsidiar of 


7. Respondent Whole Foods is in the process of merging Wild Oats into Whole Foods; 
closing numerous Wild Oats stores; selling several Wild Oats stores; and operating the 
remainder as Whole Foods stores. 

8. On June 5, 2007, the Commission authorized the commencement of 	 an action under 
Section 13(b) of the Federal Trade Commission Act to seek a temporary restraining order 
and a preliminar injunction barng the Acquisition durng the pendency of 
administrtive proceedings to be commenced by the Commission pursuant to Section 5(b) 
of the Federal Trade Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(b). 
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this action, the Commission determined that a9. In authorizing the commencement of 


temporar restraining order and a preliminary injunction were in the public interest and 
the Clayton 

Act and Section 5 ofthe Federal Trade Commission Act because the Acquisition likely 
would substatially lessen competition in the relevant markets alleged in the complaint. 



14. Premium natual and organic supermarkets offer a distinct set of products and servic€:s to 
which significantly distingush 

premium natual and organc superarkets from conventional supermarkets and other 
a distinct group of customers in a distinctive way, all of 


retailers of food and grocery items ("Retailers"). 

15. Premium natual and organic supermarkets are not simply outlets for natual and organic 
foods. Whole Foods'ChiefExecutive Offcer John Mackey acknowledged that "Whole
 

one 

par of its highly successful business modeL." hi anouncing its four quarer results for 
Foods isn't primarly about orgac foods. It never has been. Organc foods is only 


just 
sellng 'commodity' natual and organic products. We are a lifestyle retailer and have 
2006, Whole Foods stated that "Whole Foods Market is about much more than 


created a unique shopping environment built around satisfyg and delighting our
 

customers." Specifically, Mr. Mackey has said that "(s)uperior quality, superior service, 
superior perishable product, superior prepared foods, superior marketing, superior 
branding, and supcrior store experience working together are what makes Whole Foods 
so successfu," "(P)eople who think organic foods are the key don't understad the 
business modeL. . . ." 

16. To begin with, premium natul and organc supermarkets focus on perishable products, 
offering a vast selection of very high quality fresh frits and vegetables (including exotic 

and hard-to-find items) and other perishables. As Whole Foods stated in its 2006 anual 
report, "We believe our heavy emphasis on perishable products differentiates us from 
conventional supermarkets and helps us attact a broader customer base." Whole Foods' 
Chief Executive Offcer John Mackey has also emphasized the importce of high quality 

perishable foods to Whole Foods' business model: "This (produce, meat, seafood, bakery, 
Whole Foods total sales. Wal-Mar doesn't sell high 

quality perishables and neither does Trader Joe's while we are on the subject. That is 
why Whole Foods coexists so well with (Trader Joe's) and it is also why Wal-Mart isn't 
going to hur Whole Foods." 

prepared foods) is over 70% of 


17. Relative to conventional supermarkets and most other Retailers, premium natual and 

organc supermarkets taget shoppers who are, in the words of the Respondent or Wild 
Oats, "affluent, well educated, health oriented, quality food oriented people. . . ." The 
core shoppers of premium natual and organic superarkets have a preferencc for natual 
and organc products, and premium natual and organic supermarkets offer an extensive 
selection of natual and organic products to enable those shoppers to purchase 

their food and grocery requirements during a single shopping trp.substatially all of 

18, Premium natual and organic supermarkets arc differentiated from other Retailers in that 
premium natural and organic supermarkets offer more amenities and servicc venues; 
higher levels of service and more knowledgeable service personnel; and special features 
such as in-store community centers. 
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19. Premium natual and organic supermarkets promote a lifestyle of health and ecological 
sustainabilty, to which a significant porton of 
 their customers are committd. Through 
the blending together of these elements and others, premium natual and organic 
supermarkets strve to create a varied and dynamic experience for shoppers, inviting them 
to make the premium natual and organic supermarket a destiation to which shoppers 
come not merely to shop, but to gather together, interact, and lear, often while enjoying 
shared eatig and other experiences. Premium natual and organc supermarkets expend 
substatial resoures on developing a brand identity that connotes this blend of elements, 
and especially the qualities of 
 trstworthiess (viz., that all products are natural, that 
products labeled"organc" are properly labeled, that the store's suppliers practice humane 
animal husbandr, and that the store's actions are ecologically sound) and qualitative 
superiority to.other Retailers. 

20. Relative to most other Retailers, premium natual and organic supermarkets' products
 

often are priced at a premium reflecting not only product quality and service, but the 
marketing of a lifestyle to which their customers aspire. 

21. As Whole Foods' Chief 
 Executive Offcer John Mackey has acknowledged, "Safeway 
and other conventional retalers wil keep doing their thing - trng to be all things to all 
people. . . . They can't really effectively focus on Whole Foods Core Customers without 
abandoning 90% of their own customers. . . . Whole Foods core customers wil not 
abandon them because Safeway has made their stores a bit nicer and is sellng some 
organic foods. Whole Foods knows their core customers well and serves them far better 
than any oftheir potential competitors do," 

22. Mr. Mackey has also said that "(a)l1 those (conventional supermarkets and club stores) 
you named have been sellng organc foods for many year now. The only thing 'new' is 
that they are now beginning to sell private label orgaic foods for the first time. 
However, they've been sellng organc produce and organc milk for many year now. 
Doing so has never hur Whole Foods." 

23. Wild Oats' 2006 10K filed with thc Securties and Exchange Commission noted: 

"Despite the increase in natul foods sales within conventional supermarkets, (Wild 
Oats) believers) that conventional superarkets sti1lack the concentrtion on a wide 
varety of natual and organic products, and emphasis on service and consumer education 
that our stores offer." 

24. Premium natul and organic supermarkets are also very different from mass-
merchandisers, such as Wal-Mar and Target. According to Mr. Mackey, "Wal-Mar does 
a parcularly poor job selling perishable foods. Whole Foods quality is better, its 
customer service is far superior, and the store ambience and experience it provides its 
customers is fu, entertining and educational. . . ." 
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25. With respect to Trader Joe's, Mr. Mackey stated: "TJ's is a completely different concept 
than WFML WFMI's business is all about perishables - fresh produce, fresh seafood, 
fresh meat, in store delis, juice bar, and bakeries. WFMI has stated that more than 50% 
of their sales are in these categories of products - categories which TJ's doesn't even 
have. TJ's is primarily a discount private label company with a large wine selection." 

26. Unlike other natural and organc product retalers, premium natul and organic
 

supermarkets offer an extensive selection of natural and organc products to enable 
shoppers to purchase substatially all of their food and grocery requirements during a 
single shopping trp. As a result, premium natual and organic supermarkets are 
appreciably larger than other natual and organic retailers in square footage, number of 
products offered, inventory for each product offered, and anual dollar sales. 

27. Prior to the Acquisition, Whole Foods and Wild Oats, respectively, were the largest and
 

second largest operators of premium natual and organc supermarkets in the United 
States. 

28. Prior to the Acquisition, Whole Foods and Wild Oats were the only two nationwide
 

operators of premium and natural organic 
 supermarkets in the United States. 

29. Consumers spent a combined total of 2006 at Whole Foods and Wild$6.5 bilion in fiscal 


Oats. Approximately 70% of 
 that total was spent on perishable products, such as 
produce, meat, seafood, baked goods, and prepared foods. 

30. Prior to the Acquisition, Whole Foods and Wild Oats were one another's closest
 

competitors in 22 geographic markets. Consumers in these markets have reaped price 
and non-price benefits of competition between Whole Foods and Wild Oats. The markets 
where the two competed head to head are: Albuquerque, NM; Boston, MA; Boulder, 
CO; Hinsdale, IL (suburban Chicago); Evanston, IL (suburban Chicago); Cleveland, 
OH; Colorado Springs, CO; Columbus, OH; Denver, CO; West Harford, CT; 
Henderson, NV; Kansas City-Overland Park, KS; Las Vegas, NY; Los Angeles-Santa 
Monica-Brentwood, CA; Louisvile, KY; Omaha, NE; Pasadena, CA; Phoenix, AZ; 
Portland, ME; Portland, OR; Santa Fe, NM; and St. Louis, MO. 

31. Over the last five years prior to the Acquisition, Whole Foods tageted markets for entr 
where, in Whole Foods' words, Wild Oats enjoyed a "monopoly." Consumers in those 
markets benefitted from the new competition in those markets. 

32. Prior to the Acquisition, there were other geographic markets in which only one or the
 

other is present. In many of these makets, Wild Oats or Whole Foods planed, but for
 

the Acquisition, to enter and offer direct and unique competition to the other. Each 
developed expansion plans that targeted the other's "monopoly" markets, as Whole Foods 
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describes it. These markets include: Palo Alto, CA; Fairfeld County, CT; Miami Beach, 
FL; Naples, FL; Nashvile, TN; Reno, NV; and Salt Lake City, UT. 

33. Whole Foods' Mr. Mackey has said that "Whole Foods has taen signficant market share 
from OATS wherever they have opened competing stores - Boulder, Santa Fe, Denver, 
Boca Raton, Ft. Lauderdale, and St. Louis." Each of 
 the pares, in anticipation of entr 
by the other, has engaged in aggressive price and non-price competition that conveys to 
shoppers benefits that go well beyond the benefits resultig from the presence or
 

threatened entr in those geographic markets of other retailers. hi addition, when Whole 
Foods or Wild Oats expected the other to enter one of 
 its markets, it planed substantial 
improvements in quality, including renovations, expansions, and competitive pricing. As 
Mr. Mackey explained upon Whole Foods' entr into Nashville: "At least Wild Oats will 
likely improve their store there in anticipation of 
 Whole Foods eventually opening and 
(customers wil) benefit from that." Prior to the Acquisition, neither company responded 
in the same way to competition from conventional supermarkets or other Retailers. 

34. Prior to the Acquisition, consumers benefitted directly from the price and quality
 

competition between Whole Foods and Wild Oats. These benefits wil be lost in the 
markets where the two competed before the Acquisition and they will not occur in those 
markets where each had planed to expand.
 

V. RELEVAN MARKTS 

35. A relevant product market in which to analyze the effects of 
 the Acquisition is the 
opertion of premium natural and organic supermarkets. 

36. A relevant geographic market in which to analyze the effects of 
 the Acquisition is an area 
as small as approximately five or six miles in radius from premium natual and organc 
supermarkets or as large as a metropolita area. 

VI. ENTRY CONDITIONS 

37. Entr or repositioning into the operation of premium natural and organic supcrmarkets is
 

time-consuming, costly, and diffcult. As a result, entr or repositioning into the 
operation of 
 premium natul and organic supermarkets in the relevant geographic 
markets is unlikely to occur or to be timely or suffcient to prevent or defeat the 
anticompetitive effects of the Acquisition. 

VD. ANTICOMPETITIVE EFFCTS 

38. The relevant markets are highly concentrted and are signficantly more concentrted 

after the Acquisition. Premium natul and organc supermarkets' primar competitors 
are other premium natual and organc supermarkets. Shoppers with preferences for 

7 



premium natual and organc supermarkets are not likely to switch to other retalers in 
response to a small but significant non-transitory increase in premium natul and organc 
supermarket prices. .
 

39. The Acquisition is likely to have substantially lessened competition and continues to 
substantially lessen competition in the following ways, among others: 

a. the Acquisition has already eliminated one of only two or three premiumt p <</iumt 6e.n.�EMC �/P <6/MCID 5 7.39Tf�7.7439T160.64 577.4.4 590.�atul anid organc superma�atsiti32 Tm�substansitory ion ancentrcompetitBDCp <</iumt 6e.n.�EMC �/P <7/MCID 0 >>BDC �/T1_98 Tr 9.98 T160.64 564.74 616.oganacompeed 32 Tm�(premirum natual anid organ supermtition relevignigeographid organc )Tj�EMC �/P <8/MCID 2 >>BDC �/T1_2o a. the Acquisition has already elim32 Tm�(subs natueffectivermarketnatuficap <<organc )Tj�EMC �/P <<1/MCID 2 >>BDC �/T1_2o 8j�10.67  0 59.8 512.16 682.32rketlessen compebetwely Who/LIFoodrma�atWild Oaermtition oganacompeed ues to 84j�10.67  40 59.8 499.4 682.32 Tm�(premirum natual and organn supermtition relevignigeographid c supBr, organc )Tj�EMC �/P <<2/MCID 0 >>BDC �/T1_67 09j�10.67 090 60.08 486.24 616.32 Tm�substanreduc folly lready e follessen competition oganacompeed 32 Tm�(porganc )Tj�EMC �/P <<3/MCID 2 >>BDC �/T1_2o 8j�10.67  0 59.8 473.28 655.remirum natual and organc supermtiteato ed tho ingeographid aory ;others: a. the Acquisition has already eliminated one of only tw or three  miumt p <</iumt 6e.n.�EMC �/P <16/MCID 5 5Tf�7.50 59. 40435. 40 590.�atul anid organc supermtiteato ed p <<organc premim natual anid organc supermues nc a. the Acquisition has already elimion one oexise follessan ofhat cna serverasp <</iumt 6e.n.�EMC �/P <2</MCID 2 >>BDC �/T1_20.99j�10.67 99j 59.8 371.54 682.nsweangfim s32rngboard inrons anventcquum 68 Tm�(superoganacly to entertBDCnues to 95j�10.67 950 59.14 355.6 629.c supe inro32 Tm�(premium natual and organc supermtiteato ed thn relevigBnues to 72j�10.67 720 59.38 345. 40 590geographid c supBr, tend foltintoryteonswayopotansition oganacompeed 32 Tm�(porga67 7j�10.67 70 59.14 333.14 682.remirum natual anid organc supermtiteato ed tho ingeographid aory ;others: )Tj�EMC �/LI_Label <23/MCID 4 >>BDC �/T1_1 1 Tf�7.74 0 0 7.2 307.4.4 590e4 Tm�(a.)Tj�EMC �/LI_Title <24/MCID 5 >>BDC �( the Acquisition has already elimWho/LIFoodr' clo istllessen cortinp <</iumt 6e.n.�EMC �/P <25/MCID 5 5Tf�7.50 59.14 294.24 616.geographid aatuproducmalpacemtiteato ed p <<organc )Tj�EMC �/P <26/MCID 2 >>BDC �/T1_2o 7j�10.67 70334.08 294 682.ion relevignigeographid aory , resule foltalers to 72j�10.67 720 59.14 281.28 655.ion lo s ed direct aatuuniquermarketnatufica32rketlessen compefhat canveyontinues 0.02</ )T187 Td6.3hopgansebenefiermfhat go weo a eyonimion benefiermresule folfrommion psellyketortorganc )Tj�EMC �/P <27/MCID 0 >>BDC �/T1_98 2Tr 9.98 20 59.14 255. 40 590two  ely leentrted oamonmretailans;others: a.





without knowledge thereof, a statement to that effect. Allegations of 
 the Amended Complaint
 
not thus answered shall be deemed to have been admitted.
 

If you elect not to contest the allegations of fact set forth in the Amended Complaint, the 
answer shall consist of a statement that you adit all of the material facts to be tre. Such an 
answer shall constitute a waiver of 
 heargs as to the facts alleged in the Amended Complaint 
and, together with the Amended Complaint, will provide a record basis on which the 
Commission or the Administrative Law Judge shall file an initial decision containig appropriate 
findings and conclusions and an appropriate order disposing of 
 the proceedig. In such answer,
 

you may, however, reserve the right to submit proposed findings and conclusions under § 3.46 of 
the Commission's Rules of 
 Practice for Adjudicative Proceedings and the right to appeal the 
initial decision to the Commission under § 3.52 of said Rules. 

Failure to answer within the time above provided shall be deemed to constitute a waiver 
of your right to appear and contest the allegations of the Amended Complaint and shall authorize 
the Commission or the Administrative Law Judge, without fuer notice to you, to find the facts 
to be as alleged in the Amended Complaint and to enter an initial decision containing such 
findings, appropriate conclusions, and order. 

Unless otherwise directed, fuer proceedings wil tae place at the Federal Trade
 

Commission, 600 Pennsylvania Ave., N.W. Room 532, Washington, D.C. 20580. The final 
prchearng conference shall be held at that location, at 10:00 a.m. on a date to be determined. 
The pares shall meet and confer prior to the final preheag conference regarding tral 
 logistics, 
any designated deposition testimony, and proposed stipulations oflaw, facts, and authenticity. 

NOTICE OF CONTEMPLATED RELmF 

Should the Commission conclude from the record developed in any adjudicative 
proceedngs in this matter that the acquisition of 
 Wild Oats by Whole Foods challenged in ths 
proceeding violates Section 7 of 
 the Clayton Act, as amended, the Commssion may order such 
relief against Respondent as is supported by the record and is necessar and appropriate, 
including, but not limited to: 

1. An order preventing Whole Foods from consolidating any Wild Oats stores into the
 

Whole Foods system, to the extent such consolidation has not occured at the time of the 
Commission's decision; 

2. An order preventing Whole Foods from sellng or disposing of any owned or leased
 

propert that had been used as a Wild Oats store in any geographic market, or a Whole 
Foods store in any relevant geographic market; 

3. An order preventing Whole Foods from discontinuing the use of the Wild Oats name at 
any store being operated as Wild Oats at ~he time of 
 the Commission's decision; 
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4. Re-establishment of 
 Wild Oats stores, with Whole Foods stores added as necessar, along 
with any associated or necessar assets in a manner that creates a group or system of 
stores that may be available for divestitue, including, but not limited to, re-opening 
closed Wild Oats stores, re-naming Wild Oats stores that had been changed to the Whole 
Foods name, reversing any consolidation of Wild Oats stores into the Whole Foods 
system and re-establishing the Wild Oats system, and re-establishing Wild Oats' 
distrbution argements, private label products and supplier relationships; 

5. The divestitue of 
 Wild Oats stores, and Whole Foods stores, and any other associated or 
necessar assets, includig the Wild Oats name, distrbution systems or assets, and
 

supplier relationships, in a maner that restores Wild Oats as a viable, independent 
competitor in the relevant markets, with the ability to offer such services as Wild Oats 
had offered prior to its acquisition by Whole Foods; 

the Wild Oats stores pending divestitue, including operating the stores in 
the ordinar course and maintaining the inventory of the stores, the hours of operation of 
the stores and of each deparent in the stores; 

6. Maintenance of 


7. Appointment of a monitor, or a divestitue trstee, to assure that the Wild Oats, Whole 
Foods, and related assets are re-established and divested with the time set forth in the 
Commission's decision; 

8. A requirement that, for a period of time, Whole Foods provide prior notice to the 

Commission of acquisitions, mergers, consolidations, or any other combinations of its 
operations with any other company providing the operation of premium and natul 
organic supermarkets; 

9. A requirement for Whole Foods to fie periodic compliance reports with the Commission;
 

and 

10. Any other relief appropriate to correct or remedy the anticompetitive effects of the 
trsaction or to restore Wild Oats as a viable, independent competitor in the relevant
 

markets. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Federal Trade Commssion has caused this Amended 
Complaint to be signed by the Secretary and its offcial seal to be affxed hereto, at Washington, 
D.C., this eighth day of September, 2008. 

By the Commission. 

Donald S. Clark 
Secretar 
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rtJi::flAl. TRADE COMMt$SIOH 

UNtIED SrA TES':UF AM:.EïUCA 20fiß SfPl6PM .4:1 2 
BEFÙRE .mE FEDERA t'DË¡COMMSioN . .
 

i:V\C.HM.p;rr :t¡/i':).(jp;:.,,'S.i¡:!;Gw.V.' :lJ ~.;~:l '.".~V1:.""Ji..... 

)
In the Matter.of ) 

) ¡i:o.çktN.O.93.Z4 
WHQLE:FOOJ)S MAA' JNC~,
 1
 

a-eorpO'tåtiøn. ): 
ipUBLlC
 

) 

RE~QNJENT W'HOLE ;FOl)S~)Jl'; INC.'$
 
ANSWJR TO ~.Al\NJED.~OMPLAT
 

Pursuam to i6 C.~F It § 3.12, Rêspndent . Wlole FiodS Market,mc. ("Wole Foods~i) 

herebyanswør the Federâl t.rade Conuissîon)s SePtember 8~ :zoos; Amended Complaint as 

fullöws: 

RESPONSES TO TUFTC'S AnÜEGATIONS: 

Introduëtión~ Whôle.Fö.öds admitHhatthe läigua~F GiJmed :In th IntrodUcon appeared 

in :;e-roa:l ~iit to th.Boafn.ofDirt()rs, biit (Í~nits ~11 r~iraining allegatons in th
 

, .
 

nitroducúon, exepÜo th e.xtt the Introductoti contn's ¡legai conclusions ttl which no. 

respons. íà teurred.
 

L Whole Fqods admits the aIl~atiQns in I'l!llgraph 1.
 

2~ Whole Foods admits the allegations in 'Paragtaph 2.
 

J ,Whole Foods denes the an~ations in :Paralf~.ph 3,_
 

4-.Whöle Foods adni~ tht Mr.. Maëkey made¡ihestaiements quoted ih Patgtaph 4,
 

5. Whole Foods ooÏIts th aJlegationsinParagrph 5) ~cept íQ.fue exent that 
, .
 

:p.. ... ~l'anh 5 contaihs lena! co.nclosÌ"'Ïis tn . H¡j,;i.i.:. 0 .. p:öns . i . .cqtîited...a'G-et" :1,.... .... H. l.. ....v ..H.V Wtuwin . r....:i.. e s r 
!: 



6. Whole Föods admits the.ållegatiöhS ítïPMii~a:p'h 6, 

1, Whle Foods admít~ that ít is. in tha PrQçass.otapet-atingc.erW ronner WÜd Oats 

.M~kets, lnt;.('~Wild Oats") stresä.S Whöl~ Föodsstòfes but demes the 

reman4er of the alleg$qns in P¡,agrapli7.1 : 

&. Whole Foos' adits the allegations in Para~aph :8. 

9. WhòleFoòdslãiks.khowled$e Or inførati9n.suffcienttQ adni:p:r deny any 

aIegati()DS inPangniph 9, ~cçpttQtbe ~~nt thsParaph tötas legal
 

GQQClusIons to wbJçl; no rt$ponse is r:øquitei. : 

10.. Whöle:Föòds' adnûts that .on lime 7~ 1ö07, niiítt( StateRpis~ict çnurt ,Judge l:a,ul 

L. Fi1edln of 
 the. United. States Disticlcqti for the, Distct òfCo1übià 

is:sued. å consent Oider.$lantì~Kthe Comm~sion's motion for a teporar 

:rerc!îÍl:RQrder, Whole f'QodslJ4:ts. t.t:ön AU~$t 16, 20Q7; Judge FriédräI. ..
 
issued an olllertht dened the Cønintfssiôrif:s.¡reuest fora.prelìiinariiijunction
 

,. 

.aI,t on 
 Augst 23~1iÖØ1, the United Sta~s. Ç.ourQf Appea.s for the. .Pi$tt~.(lf 
.. .
 

Cölumbia. Citet1Ít issuedäf order that denef ~he :Cöinmissióti' s emergenG) 

motiön :for an: in:jufictionpending appeai.~iiç)i~ F pods a4n.iib that it 

~ated..thaçqnis-U:ion ntWUd. Oatst: Augist?:s, :2001, Whole Foods
 

admits tht. on JuiY2:9~ 200S? the United St~e:s: Court òfAppëals fòr the Distct 

ofColumhia Círcuit issued three opinions :i¡; its judgment. wiiîchspeak fot
 

themselvC$_ Whole Föö.ds denìës. thetemairtder öf thëaJlëgátiöns indPátål)h
 

10; except to the extent tI$ t-ar~graphcontf-ii~ legal concÍusio:lS :to whichnø 

,.rëSöÏiseî:s, required.
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11. Whole FoodsdeDies the allegatIons in Parafpaph 11 tD the 'exen.ttht Paragrph 

1 i. purorts tod~ñne an úid\ity staard t~nn for .tnatu fOOds,". 

, 12. Whole .Fôöds.dees theällegatiötisliPatagipb 12.to. the exentthat.Parawaph
 

12 Pll9rtSto define: thlitern"QfgajcfOQ4S" i~ tlp.y wily othert1 fø.Qds ~t 

mee.th reUÌremntso.fihe.Uníè. States l~parent of Agcultüë's Ot~änîe
 

FoodProduton Act of 
 1990. 

13. Paraph 1J oontaíns leg.conclusiøns to ltbicb no resp.onse. is:equied. 

14. WholeFöödsdemes th äne~ätOJis ifiPara~åph 14. 
,. 

¡5; Whale Foods'admìt$ththeStt~ents.auqtedín Jtarasrav iS wer~madø. but
 

denies the, r.mader oftlealegatÌØ in t't Paraph. 

16. WhöleFóódsädints. that the státehients 'q.uQted in Paragraph l6 werernad~.. but 

deuits the remander o.fthea,egatìö.ns in tIt PäIph.
 

t7~. Whole 
 Foodsadmíts tht .the statement QtlQre4 in l'aragraphn was :m:ade.1 hut 

denies. th~: remahúng aUegatiøns, in thlParAgtapb. 

12 Pl







4. Whole Foods tès the nghtto. assertan~.Qtb~r defenses .11 th~ybecme 

knQWt to WlioIe foods. 

WHFORE. R.ëspòndent Whcilè Fbo.s:rës.pecuny reqëStstbat the CommisSion (1) 

deny the conti:pla,tedrelie( (ii) (llsiíssthe Amended Cöniplajntin it$ enfuetywith prejudice, 
'. .
 

(üî) award Whole:Eòods their .costs o-fthe suit, iticl:idmg andrneys' fees; :and (iv) avtd such. 

ot an - re ..ii CdS5 ni~ee PrG
 

Dated: September 26, 2Qo.g . ....ecfully.aulimitted,
 

.' 

~. :: 

OfCöUns.l: Päûl T. Dciis: . 
Pauia. FriedJi

RoberaLang . 1effeyW.Er~nna 
Ví~Pre$ident :of Legal Afairs J~~s ~.Fis~~n
 

and Gene.tal Counsel Mic.hael D. Få:lber 

WhleFoodsMàrket Iic. DECHERT Ll. 
55.0ß:owie: Street 1115l $tteç,:N.W, 

Att$til\ TX 787Q) Wä$lûgtøn, PC; .2.00~2401 

Telephone~ (401)261-3300 
Facsimíle: (2P2) 26i~ij33
 

Áttmf-y.$jor -tQle FONMt:ke~ .Inc, 

i: .
 
:. 
:. 

:6 
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CERtiCA.fiOF SERVlCE
 

I hereby certfy tbat a1ne a.d: Gorrect cnpy otthe f~r.egøil)g Respondent WholtF t)öds 
Market. lnc.'s Answer to the AmendedCompJaint was s. tved .' . Se '.te.'b . ..26 200Su. on the. .:' ..' ..... . . .. ... . .... . . ... . . .... e ,on p m er ..., p
foUöwing pëtSQ1.š: :
 
By Hand Deliveryand Emai1:
 

Donald S. Clark, Sectet 
Federal TradeCon1mission 
6b.PennsylvàIa Ave., NW 
Roor.nJl;:-l. 72 

'Waslßgtol) Il,C... .20$8Q 

By ßand D((1j~aiid R:'MI:
 

1. Robert Rooerson,Esq.. 
Federall'Ild~ Ç()nissiQß 
600 PensyIv.ania A.venu~N;W; 
Washington, DC 20580 

Matthew 1. Rei1y,. Esq.. 

Cathn~'M; Mpsct~lj~ ESq. 
F(l.d.eral Trade 'Commission 

NewJetsey AVëiié,N.W. 
Washington, DC 20001 

Complaint Counsl 

'By: '. ::~ :... f 'llI,"/f ~ ~. . ...~ ,,-- r :O-.!r"' 

James A~iìsbldn ..~.
p.Eciji(r .LLP
 

1175 i:sttée, N.W. 
Washì*gtan, D~Ç, :2OÖOQ-"24Pl
 

Telep!i:ne: (202) 261,.3300
 

FäCSî'il~: '(t02~ 261.;3333

Att'fmrys/or Who.le FoodsMtrk.t; Inc.
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information. The hiterim Protective Order precludes any access by in-house counsel to so-called 

"Restrcted Confidential Discovery MateriaL." See hiterim Protective Order, entered June 8, 

2007, Definitions, ~~ 4, 16. Under that Order, Ms. Lag was not entitled to see the "Restrcted" 

material, only outside counsel was. See M: Terms and Conditions of 
 Protective Order, ~~ 2, 3. 

On June 29,2007, the FTC and the dcfendats were able to resolve their 

differences with respect to the Final Protective Order, and they fied a joint motion for the entr 

of a Final Protective Order, which is now before the Cour. i The proposed protective order 

agreed to by the FTC and the defendats elimintes the distinction between "Restrctcd 

Confidential Discovery Material" and "Confidential Discovery Material." See Proposed 

Protective Order, Definitions, ~ 4. It provides that Ms. Lang may have access to some but not all 

"Confidential Discover Material," specifically "only to unedated drft and final versions of 

pleadings, deposition and hearng trscripts, and expert reports, but shall not have access to any 

accompanyig exhibits or underlyig discovery materials to the extent those exhibits or 

discovery materials have been designated 'Confdentia1'.)" Proposcd Protective Order, Terms 

Protective Order, ~ 8(c). The Cour understads this to mean that Ms. Langand Conditions of 

may review draf and final versions of 
 pleadings, motions and other briefs, deposition and 

hearng trscripts, and expert reports - including portions of such filings that quote or 

paraphrase "Confidential Discovery Material" - but may not see exhibits to such filings, 

depositions or reports or underlyig discover material designated as "ConfidentiaL." This 

the intervening grocery companies, whose confidentialproposal is opposed by a number of 

On July 2,2007, the Cour denied as moot Whole Foods' original motion for entr
 

of a final protective order. 

2 
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business information, previously produced to the FTC, is at issue. Specifically, each of the 

following intervenors filed a bnef in opposition to the joint motion: Trader Joe's Company, 

Wegmans Food Markets, Inc., Superalu, Inc., Publix Super Markets, Inc., Wal-mar Stores, Inc., 

H.E. Butt Grocery Company, Safeway, Inc., and Kroger Co.2 

In connection with Whole Foods' onginal motion for entr of a final protective 

order, Ms. Lag submitted a sworn declaration. See Declaration of 
 Robert 1. Lang, Ex. C to 
\ 

Whole Foods' Motion for Entr of a Final Protective Order ("Lang Decl "). She states: 

I do not parcipate in competitive decisionmaking at Whole Foods. 
I do not participate in any decisions about formulating or 
implementig strategies to compete with our competitors or any 
decisions about formulatig or implementing pncing strategies. i 
am not involved in pncing decisions, selection of vendors, 
purchasing decisions, marketihg, or other competition-related 
issues that are the subjects of confdential information in this case. 
i am also not involved in decisions about how much product to 
purchase at wholesale, the mix of 
 products to car, where to sell 
those products, or how to transport thosc products. 

Lang Dec!. ii 4. In addition, Ms. Lang stated in her sworn declaration that she wil not make use 

of any confidential information, "diectly or indirectly, for any purose other than the defense of 

this action." ld. ii 15. She also "acknowledge(d) and agrcc(d) that (she is) subject to the 

the Cour and to its contempt powers." rd. ii 14. Finally, she volunteered "to 

remain subject to the Cour's junsdiction at all times, including after this litigation is concluded." 

Id. 

jursdiction of 
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evidence before Magistrate Judge FaccIola in Intervet that the in-house counsel was a 

"competitive decision-maker," or "involved in competitive decision-making," he allowed her to 

have access to the materials in question. See id. at 58; see also United States v. Sungard Data 

Systems, 173 F.Supp.2d 20, 21 (D.D.C. 2001) (Facciola, J.) (allowing access by in-house counel 

to confidential information); cf. Brown Bag Softare v. Svrtec Corp., 960 F.2d at 1471 

(affrming order allowing access only by an independent consultant, rather than by in-house 

counsel). 

Applying these priciples, based on her declaration the Cour is unable to 

conclude that Ms. Lag is involved in competitive decision-makng, despite the intervenors' 

arguents to the contrar. In addition, as in other cases, the pace of the instat litigation makes 

any other preventative measures impracticable. Accordingly, the Cour wil grant the joint 

motion for entr of a final protective order, with one addition. In an abundance of caution, as 

Magistrate Judge FaccIola did in each of the cases in which he allowed in-house counsel to have 

access to confidential information, the Cour wil order the paries to amend the proposed 

protective order so that it contains the following penalty provision, as an added incentive against 

inadvertent Insuse of any confidential information that Ms. Lang wil be privy to. The penalty 

provision shall state: 

Any violation of this Order wil be deemed a contempt and 
punished by a fine of $250,000. This fie wil be paid individually
 

by the person who violates this Order. Any violator may not seek 
to be reimbursed or indemnfied for the payment the violator has 
made. If the violator is an attorney, the Cour wil deem the 
violation of this Order to warant the violator being sactioned by 
the appropriate professional disciplinar authority and Judge 
Friedman will urge that authority to suspend or disbar the violator. 

5 
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With these principles and protections in mind, it is hereby 

ORDERED that the (77) joint motion for entr of a Final Protective Orer is 

GRANTED, with the modifications described herein. The paries shall submit a modified 

proposed Final Protective Order in accordance with this Memorandum Opinion and Order to the 

Cour on or before Monday, July 9, 2007. When signed by the Cour, the Final PÌotective Order 

shall supersede the Interim Protective Order entered on June 8,2007. 

SO ORDERED. 

IS! 

PAULL. FRIDMA 
United States Distrct Judge 

DATE: July 6, 2007 
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